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I ~ Meeting Procedure

AMULAIRE THERMAL TECHNOLOGY, INC.

2023 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting Procedure

1. Call the Meeting to Order

2. Chairperson Remarks

3. Report Items

4. Ratification Items

5. Election

6. Discussion

7. Extemporary Motions

8. Adjournment



IT ~ Meeting Agenda

AMULAIRE THERMAL TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Agenda of 2023 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Convening method: Physical meeting
Time : 9:00 a.m., Thursday, May 25, 2022
Place : 1F, NO. 17-6, Houhu, Linkou Dist., New Taipei City, Taiwan
( Linkou Hubei Civil Activity Center )
1. Call the Meeting to Order
2. Chairperson Remarks
3. Report Items
(1) 2022 Business Report
(2) 2022 The Audit Committee’s Review Report
(3) 2022 Distribution of Employees and Directors Remuneration
(4) 2022 Remuneration to Directors Report
(5) Amendments to “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles” and “Corporate
Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles”
(6) 2022 Private Placement Progress Report
4. Ratification Items
(1) Ratification of 2022 Business Report and Financial Statements
(2) Ratification of the Deficits Compensation of 2022
5. Election
(1) Independent director by-election
6. Discussion
(1) Proposal to release the directors and its representative from non-compete
restrictions

(2) Proposal to approve issuance of common shares in private placement or domestic
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convertible bond in private placement.
7. Extemporary motions

8. Adjournment

III ~ Report Items

Iltem 1. 2022 Business Report
Explanation: Please refer to Attachment 1 (Page 9~11) for the 2022 Business Report.

Item 2. 2021 The Audit Committee’s Review Report
Explanation: Please refer to attachment 2 (Page 12) for The Audit Committee’s Review Report in
2022.

Iltem 3. 2022 Distribution of Employees and Directors Remuneration

Explanation: The Company’s annual deficits in 2022 are $ 225,635,965 (pre-tax deficits prior to
employees and directors remuneration deductions). According to Article 24 of the
Corporation by-laws, the Company proposed not to distribute employees and
directors remuneration.

Item 4. 2022 Remuneration to Directors Report

Explanation: (1) Director remuneration policy, system, standards and structures , in accordance with
the responsibilities, risk, investment time and other factors, the relationship with the
amount of remuneration

A. The remuneration of the directors is paid in accordance with the "Regulations on
the Remuneration of Directors and Functional Committees™ approved by the Board of
Directors. The content includes traveling expenses, business execution fees, and
annual remuneration calculated based on the profit ratio. The profit ratio is a range
determined by referring to general industry standards and is listed in the "Articles of
Incorporation™ of the association after being approved by the shareholders' meeting.
B. Articles of Incorporation express that no more than 3% of the annual profit will be
used as the director's remuneration. The remuneration of the directors is in
accordance with the "Regulations on the Remuneration of Directors and Functional
Committees" approved by the Board of Directors, principles are as follows :

I. Endorsement for the company, adjunct functional committee member, need to

participate in the discussion of the meeting and responsibilities for resolution,

whose remuneration is higher than that of ordinary directors.
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I. The annual remuneration distribution is based on the attendance of the Board
of Directors.
(2) Individual remuneration paid to directors (including independent

directors) please refer to attachment 4 (Page33~34)

Iltem 5. Amendments to “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles” and “Corporate Social

Responsibility Best Practice Principles”.

Explanation: In cooperation with 23 December 2022 Letter No.
Taiwan-Stock-Governance-1110024366 of the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, the
company hereby proposed to amend “Corporate Governance Best Practice”’and
“Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles”. Please refer to
attachment 5 (Page 35~37) and attachment 6 (Page 38) for details.

Item 6. 2022 Private Placement Progress Report

Explanation : Shareholders’ Meeting resolution passed for private placement of common share at May
26, 2022, within the limit of 30 million common shares, pursuant to Article 43-6 of the
Securities and Exchange Act, Carry out in installments within one year from the date of
the resolution of this private placement of the Shareholders' Meeting, due to no suitable

applicants were found, decided not to proceed.

IV ~ Ratification Items

Item 1. (Proposed by Board of Directors)

Ratification of 2022Business Report and Financial Statements

Explanation: (1) The Company’s 2022 financial statements, which have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan Ching-Chang Chen and Fu-Ming Liao, and
Business Report submit to the Audit Committee reviewed and issued the audit

committee’s review report.



(2) Business report ~ the audit committee’s review report ~ Independent audit report and
financial statements. Please refer to attachment 1 (Page 9~11) ~ attachment 2 (Page

12) ~ and attachment 3 (Page 13~32).

Resolution :

Item 2. (Proposed by Board of Directors)

Ratification of the Deficits Compensation Statement of 2022

Explanation: (1)  Please refer to the 2022 Deficit Compensation Statement as follows:

Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc.
Deficits Compensation Statement

2022
Unit : NTD
Deficit yet to be compensated of prior years $(109,767,629)
Add : 2022 Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 530,472
Adjusted Deficit yet to be compensated in the beginning of the year (109,237,157)
Add : 2022 net loss (220,125,527)
Deficit yet to be compensated -at the end of 2022 $(329,362,684)
Lin, Chi-Sheng Lin, Chi-Sheng Chen, Ding-Yu
Chaieman of the Board Executive Officer Chief Accounting Officer
(2) Since the company still has accumulated losses in 2022, it plans not to issue
dividends.

Resolution :

V ~ Election

Item 1. (Proposed by Board of Directors)

Independent director by-election

Explanation: (1) The sixth independent director of the company, Ying-Jet, Wang, resigned on
December 15, 2022, due to personal factors. As a result, Amulaire were fewer than
three independent directors and should be by-election of independent directors.
According to Article 14-2 of the “Securities and Exchange Act” and Article 14 of
the “Articles of Company” the election of independent directors of the company

adopts a candidate nomination system. The term of office of the new independent
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directors will start from May 25, 2023, after the election of the shareholders'
general meeting to July 14, 2024, making up for the original term and the same as
the sixth directors.

(2) The list of candidates for independent directors has been reviewed and approved
by the board of directors. For the candidate's educational background, experience,
and other relevant information, please refer to attachment 7(page 39).

VI ~ Discussion

Item 1. (Proposed by Board of Directors)

Proposal to release the directors and its representative from non-compete restrictions

Explanation: (1) According to Article 209 of the Company Act, directors should explain the
important content of their actions to the shareholders' meeting and obtain
permission for actions that fall within the scope of the company's business for
themselves or others.

(2) In order to enable the directors of the company to promote the company's business
smoothly, without compromising the interests of the company, it is proposed to
submit to the shareholders' meeting for permission to lift the restrictions on the
non-compete of the current directors and their representatives. The list of directors
and content of non-competition submitted for lifting the non-competition is

detailed in the table below:



Director . .
. Name Current Positions at Other Companies
Candidates
Chairman of MUtek Electronics Co.,Ltd.
Chairman of Merry Capital Inc.
Director Chao-Li, Huang
Diretor and Legal representative of MERRY
ELECTRONICS (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD. (MESG)
Director Ta-Lun, Huang Independent director of Systex Corporation
Director and Manager of KNST CO., LTD.
Director of KING NET INFORMATION
Director Chih Jen, Hu TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD
Director of BUWON PRECISION SCIENCES CO.,
LTD.
Director Hsin-Yi, Chan Director of ENNOCONN CORPORATION
Director of WHP Strategic Public Relations Co., Ltd.
Director Shih Han, Huang
Independent director of 1 PRODUCTION FILM CO.

(3) This time, the restrictions on the non-competition of the candidates for

the new independent director are lifted. The contents of the

competition are as follows.

Name Current Positions at Other Companies
Independent director of TAN DE TECH CO., LTD.
Jin-hua ,Chen
Independent director of Neith Corporation

(4) In order to enable the directors of the company to promote the company's

business smoothly, without compromising the interests of the company, it is

proposed to submit to the shareholders’ meeting for permission to lift the

restrictions on the non-competition of the directors and their representatives.

Resolution :

ltem 2.

(Proposed by Board of Directors)

Proposal to approve issuance of common shares in private placement or domestic convertible bond in
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private placement.

Explanation: (1) The company introduces strategic investors and fundsof the company's future
development, pursuant to Article 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the Board of
Directors (“Board”) is authorized, within the limit of 30 million common shares, to
issue new common shares in private placement and/or domestic convertible bond in

private placement.

(2) The content of Issuance of new common shares in private placement or domestic
convertible bond in private placement, please refer to Attachment 8(40~45)

(3) If amendments are necessary, due to the change of the relevant regulations or
requested by the regulator’s order or changes in the objective environment, the Board
of Directors is authorized to make such required amendments at its sole discretion.

(4) At the time of execution of this case, the actual issue price will comply with the
pricing specifications of the resolution of the Shareholders' Meeting and shall take
into account the closing price of the Company's common stock at that time to
determine its reasonableness and no material impact on shareholders' equity.

(5) The important contents of this case, including the total amount of issuance, the
conditions of issuance, the conversion method, the planned project, the scheduled
progress of the use of funds, the expected potential benefits and other outstanding
matters, if amendments are necessary, due to the change of the future regulations or
modify instruction by the regulator or operational evaluation or changes in the
objective environment, the Board of Directors is authorized to make such required

amendments at its sole discretion.

Resolution :

VII ~ Extemporary motions

VIII ~ Adjournment



[ Attachment 1]

=]
AMULAIRE THERMALTECHNOLOGY, INC.
2022/ Buibi eport
=)

Dear Shareholders

First of all, we appreciate for your continuous support to the Company. We apologize for the
unexpected business stagnated and financial underperformance in 2022, which mostly due to the
economic downturn caused by repeatedly Covid pandemic and anti-inflation effect globally.
Management team and all our staff will work harder to improve operational result. Global Electric
Vehicle market has growth rapidly in existing trend. The worldwide car makers, Tierl car parts
suppliers, and major 1C makers all are dedicated in developing EV. Followin the market trend, new
projects of the Company has been increasing continuously. To keep competitive and enlarge the
market share in this industry, sustaining investment is comparative strategy. We believe this
investment is the key factor for the operation performance improving in the future.

The vision of Amularie is to be top supplier for total termal solution in global green-energy
industry. Therefore, the Company invest in developing new manufacturing skill, such as forge,
brazing, applicaton of diversified cooling materials. We also implement backward-integration
strategy to provide clients multiple and complete solutions. In 2022, the alumin and ADAS products
of the Company had got the mass production approval from clients. Furthermore, the Company has
successfully established good cooperation relationship with new important clents. These all were new
milestones for Amulaire. To enlarge business scale and reduce the risk, the Company’ strategy is to
increase clients and products in mass production every year in the future.

The company has regarded providing value-added and high quality products and services to
clients as the most important competitiveness. Based on the belief, the Company has invested in
R&D and creation and get the patents globally. The company provides better cooling solutions to
clients by R&D new skill. The company make itself not just the supplier but the partners with clients.

The company’s revenue declined 36% because the demand of major clients decreased in 2022
since they faced the problems of production interruption and slow-moving inventory, which were
caused by the repeatedly pendemic and anti-inflation globally. Althogh the Company took several
cost-saving measures (e.g., reducing production capacity, enhancing manufacturing method,
improving production efficiency), the low utilization rate of capacity decreased the company’s gross
margin from 13% in 2011 to -1% in 2022. Since the projects of new products development and
product in mass production has been increased due to the EV market booming, the company’s

operating expense was continuously increased in the first half of 2022. However, the company
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reduced the expenditrure that didn’t hinder the new product development in the second half of 2022
because of economic downturn. To improve operation performance, the company will sustain to

develop new products and enhance operation efficiency from 2023.

The comparison of operation performance between 2022 and 2021

Unit : NTD Thousands

Item 2022 2021 Difference Difference%

Operation Revenue $ 731,236 | $ 1,138,098 | $ (406,862) -36
Operation Cost (739,889) (991,705) (251,816) -26
Gross Margin (8,653) 146,393 (155,046) -106
Operation Expense (268,289) (218,097) 50,192 23
Operation Loss (276,942) (71,704) (205,238) -286
Other Gain(Loss) 51,306 (42,588) 93,894 220
Net Loss before Tax (225,636) (114,292) (111,344) -97
Income Tax Benefit 795 4,532 (3,737) -82
Net Loss (224,841) (109,760) (115,081) -105

In 2023, Amulaire face “Opportunity” and “Threat”. The opportunity will be the long-term
growth trend of Electric Vehicles market. The severe damages caused by climate change had
made “Sustainable Development” to be the consensus of all the governments and enterprises
worldwide. All major countries’ policy are promoting Electric Vehicles to achieve their
commitment to reduce emission of carbon dioxide in The United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC). Major of the global market reserch organizations
are optisimic about the compound average growth rate of EV selling. On the other hand, the
repeadly Covid pendemic, Quantitative Tightening, and stagnation of economic growth cause
uncertainty in major economies worldwide. The potential risk of economic downturn is still
possible. Management team will follow the long-term growth trend in green energy industry, and
not be affected by these short-term threats. The company will vigorously invest to diversify
product portfolio, enlarge client base, improving capabilityof production, automation and human
resources. We believe the company’s operation result will back to the growth trend after
disadvantage economic effect.

The company’s management team and all the employees acknowledged the shareholders’
expectation. We will be actively improving operational result, strengthen “Coporate
Governance”, developing new products, building core competency, following market trend to

broaden application of products. We will improve management efficiency to be global supplier of
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cooling solutions.
It is the crunch time to growth for Amulaire now. We will work strenuously to make better
operation performance to feedback your support.

At last, we thank to all your support and encouragement again. Hope you be healthy and well
Chairman: Lin-Chisheng Executive : Lin- Chisheng Accounting supervisor : Chen

Tingyu -
K
_5-
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[ Attachment 2]

Audit Committee Report

The Board of Directors has prepared and submitted to the Audit Committee the Business
Report, the Company’s 2022 Financial Statements (including the Consolidated Financial Statements),
and deficits compensation statement. The 2022 Financial Statements (including the Consolidated
Financial Statements) were audited by CPAs Ching-Chang Chen and Fu-Ming Liao from
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who then issued an audit report based on their review.

We have reviewed the Company’s 2022 Financial Statements (including Consolidated Financial
Statements), Business Report, and deficits compensation statement and found the contents to be
consistent with the information shared with us. We hereby issue this report pursuant to Article 14 of

the “Securities and Exchange Act” and Article 219 of “the Company Act” of the Republic of China.

Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc.

The Audit Committee Independent Director:
Hsin-Yi, Chan

March 1, 2023

-12-



[ Attachment 3]

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of AMULAIRE THERMAL TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of Amulaire Thermal
Technology, Inc. (the “Company™) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related parent company
only statements of comprehensive imncome, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then
ended, and notes to the parent company only financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report(s) of other auditors (please refer to the Other matter
section), the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the parent company only financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and its parent company only financial performance and its parent company only cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Aftestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Aduditors’ responsibilities
Jor the audit of the parent company only financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of
the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matiters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the Company’s 2022 parent company only financial statements. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole and, in forming
our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters for the Company’s 2022 parent company only financial statements are stated as
follows:

Valuation of inventories

Description

Refer to Notes 4(10), 5(2) and 6(4) to the financial statements for the details of the Company’s
accounting policy on inventory valuation, estimates and assumptions and allowance for inventory
valuation losses. The Company’s inventories constituted a significant portion of total assets, and the
industry involves a rapidly changing technology. Since the Company assesses obsolete or slow-moving
inventories based on the market demand in future periods, and the determination of net realisable value

for obsolete or slow-moving inventories mvolves subjective judgement resulting in a high degree of
estimation uncertainty, we determined the evaluation of inventories as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

Our audit procedures performed in the Amulawre Thermal Technology, Inc. and its subsidiaries
(recognized as investments accounted for under equity method) for the above matter are as follows:

1. Obtained an understanding of the policy on allowance for mventory valuation loss to assess the
reasonableness of application.

]

Validated the accuracy of the system logic in calculating the ageing of mnventories.

3. Tested the basis of market value used in calculating the net realizable value of mventory and
validated the accuracy of net realizable value calculation of selected samples.

Other matter — Reference to the audits of other auditors

We did not audit the financial statements of certain imvestments accounted for under equity method
which were audited by other auditors. Therefore, our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included in respect of these associates, 15 based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The balance of these investments accounted for under the equity method amounted to NT$33,846
thousand and NT$50,074 thousand, both constituting 1% of the total assets as at December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively, and the comprehensive loss recognized from associates accounted for under the
equity method amounted to NT$(16,228) thousand and NT$(3.926) thousand, constituting 7% and 4%
of the parent company only total comprehensive income for the years then ended, respectively.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the parent
company only financial statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Fmancial Reports by
Securities Issuers and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liqudate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for overseemng the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the parent company only financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted 1n accordance the Standards on Aunditing of the Republic of China will
always detect a material misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if individually or mn the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economuic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial
statements.

As part of an audit 1n accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgement and mamtain professional skepticism throughout the andit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of mternal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors” report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors” report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to confinue as a going concert.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial
statements, mcluding the disclosures, and whether the parent company only financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to oufweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Chen, Ching Chang Liao, Fu-Ming
For and on Behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Tatwan
March 16, 2023

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of operations and cash
flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of
China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such financial statements
may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the
accompanying financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended for use by those who are not informed
about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications m
practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any liability for
the uvse of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or musunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

AMULAIRE THERMAT TECHNOLOGY, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Assets Notes AMOUNT AMOUNT
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) 3 127,827 106,750
1136 Current financial assets at amortised  6(2) and 8

cost 141,394 175,782
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(3) 321,334 424,954
1180 Accounts receivable due from related 7

parties, net 7,284 4,175
1220 Current tax assets 127 3,586
130X Inventory 6(4) 351,130 324,200
1410 Prepayments 31,043 57,267
1479 Other current assets, others 9,355 15,593
11XX Current Assets 989,494 1,112,307

Non-current assets

1550 Investments accounted for using 6(5)

equity method 103,562 50,738
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(6) and 8 1,690,590 1,688,512
1755  Right-of-use assets 6(7) 67,438 73,000
1780 Intangible assets 34,567 9,143
1840  Deferred income fax assets 6021) 14,831 9,162
1900 Other non-current assets 6(12) 25,648 36,655
15303 Non-current assets 1,937,036 1,867,210
133X Total assets £ 2,926,530 2,979,517

(Continued)
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AMUTATRE THERMAT TECHNOLOGY, THNC.

BATANCE SHEFTS

7

i

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(Expressed in thousands of Mew Tarwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Liahilities and Equity HNotes AMOUNT AMOUNT
Liahilities
Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings &(8) % 267,750 % 269,000
210 Current finaneial habilites at far &%)
value through profit or loss 412 1,186
2170 Accounts payable 36,142 35.237
2200 Chher payables &(10 138,126 185,993
X280 Current lease hahilites (T 11,194 Q.470
13X Long-term liabilities, cwrent portion  &(11) 38,457 37,392
1399 Ctther cwrrent habilities, others 4,047 3,317
N3 Current Liahilities 494,138 541,595
Non-current iabilities
2540 Long-term bomowings &(11) 947,657 736,143
2570 Deferred imcome tax habilibies &20) 4,745
2580 Mon-cwrent lease lizbilifies &(T) 61,313 68,279
2600 Ctther non-cwrent labihties &(12) &, 100 4,151
253X Non-current liabilities 1,019,815 B0, 573
BOX Total Liahilities 1,515,953 1,350,168
Equity
Share capital (14
3110 Common shares 806,023 206,023
Capital suwrphas &(15)
3200 Capital swplus 815,514 815,760
Fetained eamings 616}
3310 Legal reserve 27,581 27,381
3350 Acommulated deficit { 329,363) ( 109, 768)
Other equity interast
3400 Otther equity interest 822 247)
3O Total equity 1,410,577 1,629,344
Commutments and contingent liabihties 9
3 Total Bahilitie: and equity % 2,926,530 § 2,979,517

The accompanyng notes are an infegral part of these financial statements,
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AMULATRE THERMAT TECHNOLOGY. TNC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHFNSIVE INCOME
YEARS FNDED DECFWBER 3], 2072 AND 2021
{Expressed in thousands of New Tarwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

Year ended December 31
2022 2021
Ttem= HMotes AMOUNT AMOUNT
4000 Operating reverme 6(17T) and 7 % 718,744 % 1,140,616
5000 Operating costs { 133, 348) ( 993 . 530)
5900 Gross (loss) profit from operating { 14.614) 147,086
5910 Unreahized (loss) profit from sales { 47 580
5920 Realized loss on from sales { 5907
5850 Met Gross (loss) profit from operafing { 15,228) 147,676
Operating expenses 6200
6100 Selling expenses { 18,7567 ( 17, 566)
6200 General & administrative expenses { 80, 588) 68, T3}
6300 Research and development expenses { 150, 4857 | 126 ,634)
6450 Impanrment loss (mparment gain 63}
and reversal of mpanment loss)
determined in accordance with IFES
9 { 2 8543 ( 4.422)
G000 Total operating expenses { 252,714y { 217, 3607
6900  Operating loss { 267,940 ( 69, 684)
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest meome 1,904 625
7010 Other meome 13,223 166
T020 Crher gains and losses 6(18) 68,995 | 31,470
7050 Finanee costs 6(15) { 7825 5,184)
TOT0 Share of loss of associates and jount  6(3)
ventures accounted for using equity
methad { 19,283 ( 5,962)
7000 Total non-opersting revenue and
expenses 7,021 | 44 ,624)
7900 Profit (loss) before income tax { 22009210« 114, 508)
7950 Income tax (expense) banafit 6(21) 795 4,548
8200  Profit (loss) for the year 3 22,1261 ( § 108, 760)
Components of other comprehensive
incoane that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
B3l Gains (Josses) on remezsurements of 6(12)
defined benefit plans b3 664 (% 1&)
8349 Income tax related to components of 6(21)
other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or
loss { 133} 3
Components of other comprehensive
incoame that will be reclazsified to
profit or losz
836l Exchange differences on translation  6(3) 1.069 269)
8300  Other comprehensive income for the
year b 1.600 (% 282
8500  Total comprebensive income for the
vear % 218,526) (% 110,042}
Basic eamnings per share 6(22)
9750 Total basic emrmings per share (% 2.46) (% 1.23)
Dilated eamings per share B6(22)
9850 Total diluted earmings per share % .46 (% 1.23)

The accompanyng notes are an infegral part of these financizl statements.
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Year ended December 31, 2021

Balance at January 1, 2021
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income

Appropriation and distribution of 2020 eamings

Legal reserve
Cash dividends

Dividends from capital surplus

Compensation cost incurred on employee stock options

Exercise of employee share options

Balance at December 31, 2021
Year ended December 31. 2023

Balance at January 1, 2022

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income

Compensation cost incurred on employee stock options

Balance at December 31, 2022

AMUTATRE THERMATL TECHNOQLOGY. INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMEEF. 31. 2022 AND 2021
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

Capiral Capital Feserves Retained Eamings
Exchange
differences on
translation of
Advance Total capital Total unappropriated foreign
Share capital - receipts for  surplus, additional ~ Employee stock retained eamings financial
Notes common stock _ share capital paid-in capital Warrants Legalreserve  _(accumulated deficit) stafements Total equity
$ 847,873 § 24,880 $ 769,431 $ 2,470 $ 26,953 § 6,373 $ 22 $1.678,002
- - - L | 109,760 ) - 109,760 )
- - - = 13) ( 2649y 282)
- - - - 109,773 ) ( 269 ) ( 110,042)
6(16)
. - - 628 628 ) -
- - - = 5,740 ) - 5,740 )
6(13) - = o 48,000) - - - = 48,000 )
6(13) - - 14,836 - - - 14,836
6(13) 48,150 24,880 ) 77,023 - - - - 100,293
$ 896,023 $ - $ 798,454 $ 17,306 $ 27,581 (& 109,768 ) (§ 247)  $1.629,349
896,023 $ - $ 798,454 $ 17,306 $ 27,581 (§ 109,768 ) (§ 247)  $1.629,349
- - - = 220,126 ) - 220,126)
- - - - 531 1,069 1,600
- - - = 219,595 ) 1,069 ( 218,526)
6(13) - - { 246 ) - - = 246)
$ 896,023 $ - b3 798,454 b 17,060 $ 27,581 (& 329,363y $ 822 $1.410,577

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMULATRE THEEMATL TECHNOLOGY, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMEEE. 31, 2033 AND 2031

(Expressed in thousands of Wew Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Luoss before @ax
Adjusments
Adjusmments to reconcils profit (Joss)
Fealized loss from sales
Unrealized loss from sales
Depreciation expense
Expected credit loss (gain)
et loss (gain) on financial assets or Habilities at fair valus
throwsh profit or loss
Interest expense
Interest income
Share-based payments
Share of lozs (profit) of associates and jomt venmures
accountad for using equiry metod
Lass (gaim) on disposal of property. plan and equipment
Impairment loss on non-financial assets
Changes m operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operafing assets
Dlecrsase (increase) in accounts receivable
Accoumnts receivable due from related parties, net
Inwventary
Decrease (ncrease) in prepayments
Adjusments for decreass (Increass) in other curment asssts
Changes in operating lahilitias
Decrease (increase) in fmancial liabilities at far valae
throuzh profit ar loss
Accoumis payable
Increase (decrease) m other payvable
Otther current labilites, othars
Diecrease in other non-cumment Habilities
Cash mflow (outilow) penerated Tom operations
Interest recemved
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows used m operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds Som disposal of financial assets at amortised cost
Acquiziton of invesmments accounted for using equiry method
Acquisition of property, plant and aquipment
Proceeds Som disposal of property. plant and equipment
Acquiziton of intangible assets
Increase in prepayments for business facilities
(Increase) decrease m other non-CWment Assets
et cash flows nsed in mvesting activides
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) m shar-temm loans
Proceeds Som long-term debt
Fepayments of long-term debt
Payments of lease labilites
Cash dividends paid
Cash paid from capital surplus
Exercise of employes share options
Wet cash flows fom financing activites
Wet increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at begirminz of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Year ended Dacember 31
Hotes 2013 1021
i 20,9210 (% 114,308 3
540 .
M4 590 3
6200 56,461 68,429
6200 6,234 3,367
6(3) 1,684 4,412
6(9)
i 1,496 ) 1,613
6{14) 7,823 8,184
i 1,808 3 626 )
6(13) { 146 3 4,536
6(3)
19,283 5,962
618 56 13 )
6{1%) 18,542
100,736 )
) ey i )]
i 26,930 1 )
6,124 )
6,238
7 i 1,811 )
| 8,068
{ 20,774 ) 54,406
T30 f52
6{13) ( B46 ) 178 )
1,7 250,662 1
1,909 fi26
i 6,769 1 7,413 )
1,167 =
i 4321 757,459 )
34,388 ( 170,656 3
6(5) ( 71,6520 54,000 3
6023) i 122,810 0 ¢ )
i 561 1
623) { 7,053 o 213
- i 7
i THE )
i 178, 7700 )
6(24) ( 1,250 )
6(24) 250,000
6(24) { 37,4210 ¢ 1
624) { 11,048 3 ¢ 71
(16 - )
6{15) { i
6{13) .
200, 230 506,545
1,07 475 656 )
106,750 S8, 406
i 127,627 106,750

The accompanying nofes are an miegral part of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of AMULAIRE THERMAL TECHNOLOGY, INC.
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc.
and subsidiaries (the “Group™) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, of changes i equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opiion, based on our audifs and the reports of other auditors (please refer to the Other marrer
section).the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the Infernational
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interprefations, and SIC
Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Goverming Auditing and Aftestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described i the 4uditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethies for Certified Public Accountant of the
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamned 1s sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance m our
audit of the Group’s 2022 consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters for the Group’s 2022 consolidated financial statements are stated as follows:

Valuation of inventories

Description

Refer to Notes 4(11), 5(2) and 6(5) to the financial statements for the details of the Group’s accounting
policy on mventory valuation, estimates and assumptions and allowance for inventory valuation losses.
The Group’s inventories constituted a significant portion of total assets, and the industry involves a
rapidly changing technology. Since the Group assesses obsolete or slow-moving inventories based on
the market demand in future periods, and the determination of net realisable value for obsolete or slow-
moving inventories involves subjective judgement resulting in a high degree of estimation uncertainty,
we determined the evaluation of inventories as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

‘We performed the following audit procedures on the key audit matter mentioned above:

1. Obtained an understanding of the policy on allowance for inventory valuation loss to assess the
reasonableness of application.

[

Validated the accuracy of the system logic in calculating the ageing of inventories.

3. Tested the basis of market value used in calculating the net realizable value of inventory and
validated the accuracy of net realizable value calculation of selected samples.

Other matter — Reference to the audits of other auditors

We did not audit the financial statements of certain investments accounted for under the equity method
which were audited by other auditors. Therefore, our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to
the amounts mcluded in respect of these associates. is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
The balance of these investments accounted for under the equity method amounted to NT$33,846
thousand and NT$50,074 thousand, constituting 1% and 2% of the consolidated total assets as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and the comprehensive loss recognized from associates
accounted for under the equity method amounted fo (NT$16,228) thousand and (NT$3,926) thousand,
constifuting 7% and 4% of the consolidated fofal comprehensive loss for the years then ended,
respectively.

-24-



Other matter — Parent company only financial reports

We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion on the parent company only financial statements
of Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc. as at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial

sfatements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations that came mto effect as endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, and for such internal control as management determines 1s necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the gomg concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material nusstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of Chma will
always detect a material misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or m the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit mn accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material nusstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimon. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal confrol.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention i our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
madequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
mcluding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtamn sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial mformation of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

‘We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, mcluding any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance i the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Chen, Ching Chang Liao, Fu-Ming
For and on Behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 16, 2023

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated finaneial statements and independent audifors” report are not infended for use
by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, and their applications in practice.

A the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any liability for
the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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AMULATRE THERMAIL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BATANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Assets Notes AMOUNT AMOUNT
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) s 198,867 108,043
1136 Current financial assets at amortised  6(3) and 8

cost 141,394 175,782
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(4) 322,263 426,515
1180 Accounts receivable due from related

parties, net - 16
1220 Current tax assets 127 3,586
130X Inventory 6(5) 351,197 326,203
1410 Prepayments 38,497 57,300
1479 Other current assets, others 14,048 15,593
11XX Current Assets 1,067,293 1,113,038

Non-current assets

1550 Investments accounted for using 6(6)

equity methed 33,846 50,074
1600 Property. plant and equipment 6(7) and 8 1,736,129 1,688,512
1755 Right-cf-use assets 6(8) 67,438 73,000
1780 Intangible assets 34,567 9,143
1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(21) 14,831 9,162
1900 Other non-current assets 6(12) 30,524 36,667
15XX Non-current assets 1,917,335 1,866,558
13X Total assets b3 2,984,028 2,979,596

(Continued)
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AMULATRE THERMAT TECHMNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARTES

COMNSOLIDATED BAT ANCE SHEETS
v

02

(Expressed in thousands of New Tawan dollars)

December 31, 2022

Decamber 31, 2021

Liabilities and Equity HNotes AMOUNT AMOUNT
Liahilities
Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(5) 267,750 269,000
2120 Current financial habihties at famr &(2)
value through profit or loss 422 1,186
2170 Accounts payable 36,142 35,237
2200 COtther pavables S(10 140,968 186,045
2280 Cwrrent lezse liabilities &(8) 11,1%4 9.470
320 Long-term Liabdlities, curent portion &(11) 38,457 37,392
399 Other current hiabilities, othars 4.495 3.5344
21X Current Liahilitiez 499,428 341,674
Non-current Hahilities
1540 Long-term bomowings &(11) 947,657 36,143
2570 Deferred income tax Habilities &(21) 4,745
2580 MNon-cwrent lease lizbilitias 6(8) 61,313 68,279
2600 Other non-cwrent liabilities (12 &, 100 4,151
2530 Non-current liabilities 1,019,815 808,573
oI Total Liabilities 1,519,243 1,350,247
Equity
Share capital &(14)
3110 Common shares 806,023 806,023
Capital suwrphas &(13)
3200 Capital sirplus 815,514 815,760
Retained earnmes &(16)
3310 Legal razerve 27,581 27,581
3350 Accoummmulated deficit 329,363) ( 109, 768)
Other equity interest
3400 Other equity interest 822 247
36301 Nom-controlling interests B(23) 54,808
30O Total equity 1,465,385 1,629,344
Commrtments and contingent llabhes 9
o Total Babilities and equity 2,984,628 2,979,596

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THERMAL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

AMULATRE
COMSOLTDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME

72 i i)

YEARS FNDED DECFMBER 3], 2003 AND 2021
(Expressed in thousands of Mew Taiwan dollars, except for (Joss) eamings per share)

Year ended December 31

2022 2021
Ttems AMOUNT AMOUNT
4000  Opersting reverms 6(1T) b 731,23 % 2B, 093
5000  Operating costs G20 { 739 8897 ( 991,705)
5900 Gross profitiloss) from operating { 8.653) 145,393
Operating expenses 6(20)
6100 Selling expenses { 22,55 ( 18, 302)
6200 General & admmistrative expenses { 92,3610 ( 68,739
6300 Fesearch and development expenses { 150, 485) ( 126,634)
6450 Impanrment loss (impatrment gain ~ 6(4)
and reversal of mpanment loss)
determined 1n zccordance with IFRS
9 { 2. 8840 ( 4,422}
6000 Total operating expenses { 268, 2897 ( 2180973
6200  Operating loss { 276,942 ( T1.704)
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest inconss 3,207 626
7010 Orther ncome 13,223 366
7020 Other gams and losses 6(18) 68,927 ( 31,470}
7050 Finance costs 6(1%) { 7823 ( 5. 184)
T060 Share of loss of associates and joant  6(6)
ventures accounted for using equty
method { 16,228) { 3,926)
7000 Total non-operating revenue and
expenses 51,306 | 43,588
7900  Loss before income tax { 235,630 ( 114,292
7950 Income tax benefit 6(21) 795 4,532
8200  Lass for the year (3 224 841 (3 109 7607
B311 Gains (losses) on remeasweaments of 6(12)
defined benefit plans b3 [ 16)
8349 Income tax related to components of 6(21)
other comprehensive income that
will not be reclas=ified to profit or
loss { 135) 3
Components of other comprehensive
income that will be reclazzified to
profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences on translation 1968 ( 2693
8300  Other comprehenszive income for the
vear b 2,499 (3 282)
8500  Total comprehensive income for the
year (3 222,342y (3 1100423
Loss, athibutable to:
B&10 Laoss, atimbutable to owners of
parent [§3 220,126) (% 109,760
B620 =5, attributable to pon-controlling
interests [ 47151 3%
Comprehensive income athibutable to:
ET10 Comprehensive meome, attnibutable
to owners of parent [ 222,340 (3 110,042
Basic loss per share 6(22)
9750 Total basic loss per share (3 2461 (% 1.3}
Dnluted loss per share 6(22)
9850 Total diluted loss per share (3 2.46) (% 1.3}

The aceompanying notes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Year ended December 31, 2021

Balance at January 1, 2021
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive income
Appropriation and distribution of 2020 eamings
Legal reserve
Cash drvidends
Dividends from capital surplus
Compensation cost incurred on employee stock options
Exercise of employee share options
Balance at December 31, 2021
Year ended December 31, 2022
Balance at Janmary 1. 2022

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive income
Compensation cost incurred en employee stock options
Changes in non-controlling mterests

Balance at December 31, 2022

AMUT ATRE THERMAT TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARTES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(Expressed m thousands of New Tarwan dollars. except as otherwise indicated)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Capital Capital Reserves Retained Earnings
Exchange
differences on
translation of
Advance Total capital Total unappropriated foreign
Share capital - receipts for suplus, additional Emplovee stock retained earnings financial Non-controlling
Notes common stock  share capital paid-in capital warrants Legal reserve  (accummulated deficit) statements interests Total equity
§ B47,873 £ 24,880 b 769,431 b 2,470 § 26,953 $ 6,373 ¥ 22 b - $1,678,002
- - - - ( 109,760) - - 109,760 )
- - - - - 13) « 269) - 282)
- - - - ( 109,773) « 269) - 110,042 )
6(16)
= = = = 628 628) - - -
- - - - ( 5,740) - - 5,740 )
6(15) - = 48,000 ) = - = = 48,000 )
6(13) - - - 14,836 - - - 14,836
6(13) 48,150 o 24,830 17,023 - - - - 100,293
§ 896,023 ¥ - b3 798,454 § 17.306 § 27,581 (% 109,768 ) (% 247y % - $1.629,349
$ 896,023 ¥ - $ 798,454 § 17,306 $ 27,581 (% 109,768 ) (% 247y % - $1,629,349
- - - - ( 220,126)) - 4,715) 224,841 )
= = = = 531 1,069 899 2,499
- - - - ( 219,595 ) 1.069 ¢ 3.816) 222,342)
6(13) - - - 246 ) - . - 246 )
6(23) - - - - - = 58,624 58,624
§ 896,023 $ - § 798,454 b 17,060 $ 27,581 (% 329,363) % 822 54,808 $1,465,385

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AMULATRE TEIFRMAT. TECHNOLOGY, TNC. ANMD STTBSIDTARIES

CONSOLIDATET STATEMPNTS OF CASH FLOWE
YEARS ENDED DECEMEFR 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Exprussed im themsamds of Mew Tararam dnllars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPFRATING ACTIVITIES
Lo badfore tax
Admstments t0 ecomcils proft (Joss)
Ampriization sxpame
Expected creditloss

Mt bows (gain) on financial swets or liahilities at fuir vame throngh

proftor Jew

Ioimowst sopanse
Iotemest incoms
Share-based pavmann

Share of loss (profit) of msociims nd joint wentmmes accommied for

usng equiy metiod
Loss {52z} en disposal of proparty, phin and squipmant
Imnpaimesant losa om nom-fnancial asseds
Clangss: in operating assss and Mbilities
Changes In opemting awt
Ducmeazs (nrresss)) in scoount mecivable
Acooemts receivable due from melyted partios, met
Inventery
Duoruase (nmease)) in prepavmsnts

Adfestments for decresss (nrrese) I other coreed assets

Changes i opsrating linhilities

Duorease (Inmense)) in fxomcial assets at fair vahe theomgh poofat or

loss
Acoounts payable
Inosass (deosass) o othar payable
Oithar coxrent Hakdlities, othars
Docrease in other sox-mumant Labilites
Cash outflow genaried from operations
Intarest recaded
Intarest paid
Incoms taxes refomd (paid)
Mt cash flows med n opereting activities
CASH FLOWS FROM IMVESTING ACTIVITIES
Procesds from disposal of Srancial asets at amortised cost
Acquisition of fmancial assets at amortied cost
Armuisition of imecments accomied S ming ity method
Acquisition of property, plant and squiposant
Proceeds from disposal of proparty, plant and squipmant
Acquisition of intmgihle asset
Increass = prepayments for bosines: facdlites
{Increass) decreass in otbar Don-curTent assets
Mt cash fows wed I Envesting activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCTNG ACTIVITIEE
Increass (decsass) o short-tarm loans
Proceeds from long-term debt
Eepaymants of long-tame debt
Pavmeats of kase Hbilites
Cash dhidonds paid
Cash paid Srom capial sumphs
Ewarriu of soployes thar options
Chamgs m non-contreJling, vierests
Mt cash Sows from Snamcing activities
Effects of axchange mte change on cath
Mt mcrease (decreass) o cash and cash equivalets
Cash 2nd cach squinalemts o begmming of year
Canki and canh equivalets 2t and of year

Vear ended Decanshar 31
Homs 2022 2021
(% n5EM Y (% 114,22
B{X0) sl LI
{20 87,04 68,429
&%) 1B 4412
5(2)
[ 12,406 3 2613
5{1%) 17,823 8,184
[ 0. L T 624
613 [ M6 ) 14,836
(51
16,228 3,926
[ 8|y o( 13}
6{1%) 18,542 -
01,355 [ 125,545
-] [ 16
[ 4.0y 172,403
18,808 o 5 B30
-5 1,335
11,7 [ 2,811
&,069
{ 1 54,458
6
i i 178 »
{ [ 251,380 )
624
i i I FE ]
3.197 [ 16 3
[ 12,28 [ 258,202 »
-u'l_j&o -
-0 140,656 »
5(8) -0 54,000 ¥
B{24) [ i1 47 [ 571,820 »
-] 521
B{24) [ 17,733 [ 20,532 )
- i 1,987 )
) 3,158 ) 5 40
) STy 818,754 )
625 { 269,000
627 350,000
2%) [ [ 42,821 )
B(13) [ [ L -
6{14) -0 5,40 )
6{1%) -0 48,000 »
613 - 100, 23
6(23) 58,624 -
156, 04 S04, 545
s 260 3
G080 480,680 3
108, (43 —_ BB
1 196 867 1 108,043

The acconpanying notes 2re an integral part of thews consolidated fmamcial strtements.
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[ Attachment 4]

2022 Remuneration to Directors

Director's remuneration Ratio of total Compensation Received by a Director Who Isan E.mployee of the Ratio of total
. Company and/or any Consolidated Entities .
Remuneration - remuneration Salary, bonus compensation c i
Remuneration(A) to directors Business (A+B+C+D) to and s’ ecial Employee compensation (A+B+ C+ D+ e
(Note 1) Pension (B) ©) expense (D) net income ol Iowaﬁce ©® Pension (F) ploy p E+F+G) to net o Piud t(]z
Note 3 after tax income after tax | DIFE€CLOrs from
(Note 2) ( ) (Note 4) Nonconsolidat
Title Name All ed
~ 22 2l 2 = = 2 g 2 4 2| e | Consolidated I Z | Affiliates or
@ mQ | @2 1 m9Q @ | m9Q m9 @ mQ o m9 @ m9 ompany | Enities o m9 arent
0 s o|z38| o |38 |*|358 0 S S ) S S 0 S S Q) 5 S p
o E: D o E_" ) o E_" ) N E_" ) o s D o E_“ 7] o E_“ 7] o E ) Company
3 = O 3 = 0 3 =de] =de] 3 =Af] 3 = 0 3 = O 3 =)
§ |85 % %z § Bz |83 3 8 | § 83 § @3 § | 85  (Noey
2 g s g5 g g 2 S s S 2 § |Cash Stock| Cash |Stock| S Y
< @ < @ < @ @ < @ < @ < @ < @
o o o o o o o o
Chairperson [Chi-Sheng, Lin — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — N/A
. - - - o 80 80 - - - - _ _ _ 80 80
Director [Ta-Lun, Huang 80 | 80 (0.04%) (0.04%) (0.04%) | (0.04%) N/A
Pao Yu (I1)
. Investments Co., Ltd. o o . o . o o o - - - o o o 2,128 2,128
Director o by 2062 | 2062 | 66 66 (0.95%) | (0.95%) NIA
Chi-Joan Yu
Sunder Investment.
. Co., Ltd. B I e B 90 90 B B B B R B 90 90
Director Represented by %01 %0 (0.04%) (0.04%) (0.04%) | (0.04%) NIA
Chao-Li, Huang
Pao Yu (I1)
Director |Investments Co., _ _ - _ - _ _ _ - - B _ _ _ 1,092 1,092
(Note 6) |Ltd.Represented 10491 1049 43 43 (0.49%) | (0.49%) N/A
by Chih Jen, Hu
Independent| , . . 170 170 170 170
. Hsin-Yi, Ch - - |- - | - - - - - - - - - -
Director | o Yh €han 01170 1 oosm) | (0.08%) (0.08%) | (0.08%) NIA
Independent |, . _ _ _ _ _ _ 190 190 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 190 190
Director >N Han, Huang 1907190 1 h08%) | (0.08%) (0.08%) | (0.08%) NIA
Independent
. - 30 30 30 30
Ying-Jet, W - - = - |- - - - - - - -] - -
'(?\;L‘izt% Ing-Jet, Wang 80130 1 001 | (0.01%) (0.01%) | (0.01%) N/A

Note 1 : Remuneration paid to directors in 2022, including salary, allowance, severance, all types of bonuses, and performance bonus.
Note 2 : Compensation paid to directors in 2022 approved by the Board of Directors. In 2021, Amulaire still accumulated deficit, so without the distribution of remuneration.
Note 3 : Business expenses incurred by directors in carrying out their duties in 2022, including travel allowance, special allowance, other allowance, accommodation, and fringe benefits such as company cars.
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Note 4: Compensation received by a director who is an employee (whether serving concurrently in the position of president, vice president, executive officer, or employee) of Hotai and/or any consolidated entities
in 2022, which includes salary, allowance, severance,all types of bonuses, performance bonus, travel allowance, special allowance, other allowance, accommodation, and fringe benefits such as
company cars

Note 5 : a. This column should clearly fill in the amount of remuneration received by the directors from the reinvestment business outside the subsidiary or the parent company (if there is no one, please fill in
"None")
b. If the directors have received relevant remuneration from the investment business outside the subsidiary or the parent company, the remuneration received by director from the investment business
outside the subsidiary or the parent company shall be included in column “I” of the remuneration scale table, and change the name of the field to "Parent Company and All Invested Enterprises".

¢. Remuneration refers to the remuneration (including remuneration of employees, directors and supervisors) and business execution expenses received by the directors of the company as directors,
supervisors or managers of subsidiaries or parent companies. remuneration.

Note 6 : Pao Yu (Il) Investments Co., Ltd. changed the representative from Chi-Joan Yu to Chih Jen, Hu at August 15, 2022.
Note 7 : Ying-Jet, Wang resigned from independent director due to personal reasons at December 15, 2022.
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[ Attachment 5)

Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc.

Comparison of the Current and Amended Provisions of the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles

Amended Provisions Current Provisions Commentary
Article 3-1 Article 3-1 According to the corporate  governance
(omitted) (omitted) 3.0-sustainable development blueprint planning

6. Report to the board of directors the results of
its review of whether the qualifications of
independent directors comply with relevant laws
and regulations at the time of nomination and
election, that is, during the term of office.

8. Other matters set out in the articles or

corporation or contracts

6. Other matters set out in the articles or
corporation or contracts

and the result of consulting external opinions, the
independent directors (including independent
director candidates and current independent
directors) qualification legal compliance matters
are included in the corporate governance
supervisory function; in addition, in order to
strengthen the corporate governance supervisory
function, Incorporate the handling of changes of
directors (including but not limited to the matters
that should be handled in accordance with the
regulations when the director of corporate
governance receives the notice of resignation of a
director or the reassignment of item 3 of Article 27
of the Company Act) into the function of the
director of corporate governance, respectively.
Paragraphs 6 and 7 are added.

Section 3 Corporate Governance Relationships
Between the Company and Its Related Party

Section 3 Corporate Governance
Relationships Between the Company and Its
Affiliated Enterprises

Considering that the normative content of this
section includes not only the governance
relationship between listed OTC companies and
affiliated companies, but also the management of
dealings with related parties, etc., the name of this
section is revised.

Article 17 When the Company and its related
party enter into inter-company business dealings or
transactions, a written agreement governing the

Article 17 When the Company and its

affiliated-enterprises-enter into inter-company
business-transactions, a written agreement

1. Amend the first item. The current provisions
only regulate the written norms for the
transactions between the company and its

-35-




Amended Provisions

Current Provisions

Commentary

relevant financial and business operations between
them shall be made in accordance with the principle
of fair dealing and reasonableness. Price and
payment terms shall be definitively stipulated when
contracts are signed, and non-arms-length
transactions and improper benefit transfers shall be
prohibited.

The content of the written specification in the
preceding paragraph shall include the management
procedures for transactions such as purchase and
sale transactions, acquisition or disposal of assets,
capital lending, and endorsement guarantees, and
relevant major transactions shall be submitted to the
board of directors for approval or to the
shareholders' meeting for approval or report

governing the relevant financial and business
operations between them shall be made in
accordance with the principle of fair dealing and
reasonableness. Price and payment terms shall be
definitively stipulated when contracts are signed,
and non-arm's length transactions shall be
prohibited.

affiliated enterprises. In order to strengthen the
company’s management of related party
transactions, written norms should also be
formulated for the transactions between the
company, related parties and shareholders, and the
scope of related parties includes relationships. For
enterprises, the current second item shall be
merged and moved to the first item, and the text
shall be amended as appropriate.

2. Paragraph 2 is added, specifying that the written
specification in the preceding paragraph shall
include management procedures for relevant
transactions, and that major transactions shall be
submitted to the board of directors for resolution
and approval, or to the shareholders' meeting for
approval or reporting.

Acrticle 31(omitted)

The Company shall evaluate the independence and
suitability of the CPA engaged to refer to AQIs by
the company regularly, and no less frequently than
once annually. In the event that the company
engages the same CPA without replacement for 7
years consecutively, or if the CPA is subject to
disciplinary  action or other circumstances
prejudicial to the CPA's independence, the company
shall evaluate the necessity of replacing the CPA
and submit its conclusion to the board of directors.

Article 31(omitted)

The Company shall evaluate the independence and
suitability of the CPA engaged by the company
regularly, and no less frequently than once
annually. In the event that the company engages
the same CPA without replacement for 7 years
consecutively, or if the CPA is subject to
disciplinary action or other circumstances
prejudicial to the CPA's independence, the
company shall evaluate the necessity of replacing
the CPA and submit its conclusion to the board of
directors

In order to improve the transparency of audit
quality, the "Corporate Governance
3.0-Sustainable Development Blueprint™ promotes
audit quality indicators (AQIs) and encourages the
audit committees of listed companies to refer to
the AQI information provided by the accounting
firm when evaluating the replacement of
accounting firms.

Acrticle 55 (omitted)
This Code was adopted on May 12, 2016.
This Code was first revised on March 14, 2017.

Article 55 (omitted)
This Code was adopted on May 12, 2016.
This Code was first revised on March 14, 2017.

Add revision history
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Amended Provisions

Current Provisions

Commentary

This code was revised for the second time on
January 23, 2019.

This code was revised for the third time on March
5, 2018.

This code was revised for the fourth time on
February 23, 2022.

This Code was revised for the fifth time on March
1, 2023.

This code was revised for the second time on
January 23, 2019.

This code was revised for the third time on March
5, 2018.

This code was revised for the fourth time on
February 23, 2022.
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[ Attachment 6]

Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc.

Comparison of the Current and Amended Provisions of the Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles

Amended Provisions

Current Provisions

Commentary

Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles

Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles

Amend the name in accordance
with the law

Article 27-1 New In order to encourage enterprises to
The company should continue to pour resources into support cultural and artistic
cultural and artistic activities or cultural and creative activities and promote_sustamable
. . . . cultural development, it has been
industries through donation, sponsorship, investment, updated.

procurement, strategic cooperation, corporate voluntary

technical services or other support modes to promote

cultural development.

Acrticle 55 (omitted) Article 55 (omitted) Add revision history

This Code was adopted on May 12, 2016.

This Code was first revised on March 14, 2017.

This code was revised for the third time on March 5, 2018.
This code was revised for the fourth time on February 23,
2022.

This Code was revised for the fifth time on March 1, 2023.

This Code was adopted on May 12, 2016.
This Code was first revised on March 14, 2017.

This code was revised for the third time on March 5, 2018.

This code was revised for the fourth time on February 23,
2022.
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[ Attachment 7]

List of Nominated Independent Director Candidates

Name

Jin-hua ,Chen

Education

® Feng Chia University -EMBA
® Feng Chia University -Department of Statistics

Experience

Chief, Jhunan Office, National Taxation Bureau of the Central Area.
Ministry of Finance

Chief, Datun Office National Taxation Bureau of the Central Area.
Ministry of Finance

Acting Chief of First Examination Division, Senior Auditor and Chief
National Taxation Bureau of the Central Area. Ministry of Finance
Senior Auditor, Chief Secretary, National Taxation Bureau of the
Central Area. Ministry of Finance

Senior Auditor and Acting Chief, National Taxation Bureau of the
Central Area. Ministry of Finance Mincyuan Office

Director of National Taxation Bureau of the Central Area. Ministry of
Finance Yunlin Branch

Director of National Taxation Bureau of the Central Area. Ministry of
Finance Fengyuan Branch

Current Position

Independent director of TAN DE TECH CO., LTD.
Independent director of Neith Corporation

Shares Held

by
Corporation
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[ Attachment 8]

AMULAIRE THERMAL TECHNOLOGY, INC.

The methods and content of issuance of common shares in private placement or

domestic convertible bond in private placement.

(1) When filling the case of " To issue new common shares for cash in private placement
(“Private Placement Shares”)”, it is proposed to request the approval of the shareholders'
meeting and authorize the board of directors to carry out in installments once or twice within

one year from the date of the resolution of the Shareholders' Meeting and proceed as following:

1. The basis and reasonableness of the pricing

(a) The price of Private Placement Shares , which shall be either of the following prices
(whichever is higher): a. The simple arithmetic mean of the closing prices of the
Company's common stock on the date falling on either one, three or five business day(s)
prior to such filing, after adjustment for net of the ex-rights by share distribution, cash
dividends or capital reduction. b. The simple arithmetic mean of the closing prices of
the Company's common stock on the date falling on either one, three or five business
day(s) prior to such filing, after adjustment for net of the ex-rights by share distribution,
cash dividends or capital reduction.

(b) The price of Private Placement Shares shall not be less than 80% of the reference
price and not less than the denomination of $10 is the principle, proposed that the
shareholders' meeting authorize the Board of Directors to determine the actual issuance
price by taking into account market conditions and contact with specific persons,
within a range not less than the ratio determined by the resolutions of the shareholders'
meeting.

(c) The private placement price is determined according to the laws and regulations set
by the competent authority and operating status, future, reference price on pricing day;

as such, the price set shall be reasonable.

2. Choice of specific persons
Pursuant to Article 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act and administration

Regulation.

3. The objectives of selecting the specific persons, the necessity for that selection, and the
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anticipated benefits
(@) If the applicant is a strategic investor :
A. Obijectives : The company is for the purpose of future development and

long-term operation planning, intend to introduce strategic investors who can
benefit the company's future operations through private placement, To strengthen
the competitiveness of the company's technology, product types, customer

structure and marketing.

B. The necessity for that selection, and the anticipated benefits : In view of future

changes in market demand for products, in order to enhance the company's
competitive advantage, introduce strategic investors who will be helpful to
the company's future product and market development. In addition, the
joining of applicants can accelerate the company's opportunities for product
and market development, through the integration of various industries or
joint research and development of the market, to assist the company to
improve technology, Improve efficiency, expand market scale, contribute to

the stable growth of the company, which should help increase shareholder
equity.

(b) The specific persons have not been arranged

4. Why no public offering : In light of time-efficiency, convenience, issue costs and the
private placement of stock is subject to a three-year limitation on transfers, which may
ensure and strengthen a long-term relationship between the Company and its strategic

investors; as such, issued not through public offering but through private placement.

5. Purpose of private placement funds and expected benefits to be fulfilled: Carry out in
installments once or twice within one year from the date of the resolution of this
private placement of the Shareholders’ Meeting. All the funds raised through private
placements are used to enrich the operating funds, strengthen the Company's financial
structure , increase its effect of operations and company's competitiveness, which

should help increase shareholder equity.

6. Rights and obligations of this private placement shares : The rights and obligations of

the Private Placement Shares shall be the same as those of the original shares. Under
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the Article 43-8 of the Securities and Exchange, this private placement shares, Unless
certain conditions are met, it can be freely transferred after three years from the date of
delivery, And three years after the delivery date of the Private Placement shares, apply
for supplementary office development, issuance and listing transactions in accordance

with relevant Act.

7. The Private Placement new common shares plan in addition to the price ratio of private
placement plan includes primarily actual issued price, total number of shares,
conditions of issuance, amount of issuance, record date of cash capital
increase ,planned project, the scheduled progress of the use of funds, the expected
potential benefits and All other matters related to the issuance plan, proposed to request
the approval of the shareholders' meeting and authorize the board of directors
adjustment, determination and handling according to market conditions, if amendments
are necessary, due to the change of the future regulations or modify instruction by the
regulator or operational evaluation or changes in the objective environment, the Board

of Directors is authorized to make such required amendments at its sole discretion.

8. It is proposed to request the approval of the shareholders' meeting > and authorize the

Chairman or his designated agent to sign all relevant contracts and documents relating
to “The Private Placement common shares” and to handle all relevant matters, and all

matters related to the issuance of private placement common shares.

(2)When filling the case of " Private Placement Domestic Convertible Bond”, it is proposed to
request the approval of the shareholders' meeting and authorize the board of directors to
carry out in installments once or twice within one year from the date of the resolution of the
Shareholders' Meeting and proceed as following:

1. The basis and reasonableness of the pricing :

(1) Term:The term of the Private Placement Domestic Convertible Bond shall not exceed

seven years from the issuance date.

(11) Denomination per sheet: NT$100,000

(111) Coupon Rate : To be determined by the Board.

(1V) The price of Private Placement Domestic Convertible Bond , which shall be either
of the following prices (whichever is higher): a. The simple arithmetic mean of the
closing prices of the Company's common stock on the date falling on either one,
three or five business day(s) prior to such filing, after adjustment for net of the
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ex-rights by share distribution, cash dividends or capital reduction. b. The simple
arithmetic mean of the closing prices of the Company's common stock on the date
falling on either one, three or five business day(s) prior to such filing, after
adjustment for net of the ex-rights by share distribution, cash dividends or capital
reduction. The conversion price of Private Placement Domestic Convertible Bond
shall not be less than 80% of the reference price. Proposed that the shareholders'
meeting authorize the Board of Directors to determine the actual issuance price in
accordance with relevant Act.

(V)The issue price of private placement domestic convertible bond may not be below
80% of the theoretical price. The theoretical price will be determined with the
valuation model selected that covers and takes into consideration at the same time
various rights included in the issuance criteria. Consider factors such as listing
restrictions and trading restrictions on common shares converted from Private

Placement Domestic Convertible Bond; as such, the price set shall be reasonable.

2. The objectives of selecting the specific persons, the necessity for that selection, and the
anticipated benefits
(@) If the applicant is a strategic investor :
A. objectives : The company is for the purpose of future development and

long-term operation planning, intend to introduce strategic investors who can
benefit the company's future operations through private placement, To strengthen
the competitiveness of the company's technology, product types, customer

structure and marketing.

B. the necessity for that selection, and the anticipated benefits : In view of future

changes in market demand for products, in order to enhance the company's
competitive advantage, introduce strategic investors who will be helpful to
the company's future product and market development. In addition, the
joining of applicants can accelerate the company's opportunities for product
and market development, through the integration of various industries or
joint research and development of the market, to assist the company to
improve technology, Improve efficiency, expand market scale, contribute to
the stable growth of the company, which should help increase shareholder
equity.
(b) The specific persons have not been arranged
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3. The reasons for the necessity of conducting the private placement

(A)The Company intends to conduct the private placement in consideration the situation
of the capital market, time sensitiveness, feasibility, issue costs and actual demand in
introduction of strategic investors. And the private placement of securities is subject
to a three-year limitation on transfers, which may ensure a long-term relationship
between the Company and its strategic investors.

(B) Purpose of private placement funds and expected benefits to be fulfilled: Carry out
in installments once or twice within one year from the date of the resolution of this
private placement of the Shareholders' Meeting. All the funds raised through private
placements are used to enrich the operating funds, repay bank loan and funds for
future development, strengthen the Company's financial structure, increase its effect

of operations, which should help increase shareholder equity.

4. The restrictions on transfers of the Private Placement Domestic Convertible Bond are
handled under Article 43-8 of the Securities and ExchangeThis Private Placement
Domestic Convertible Bond and common shares subsequently converted, unless certain
conditions are met, it can be freely transferred after three years from the date of delivery.
Common shares converted after the Private Placement Domestic Convertible Bond, and
three years after the delivery date of the Private Placement Domestic Convertible Bond,

apply for supplementary office.

5. The Private Placement Domestic Convertible Bond plan includes primarily actual issued
price, conditions of issuance, conversion method, amount of issuance, planned project,
the scheduled progress of the use of funds, the expected potential benefits and other
outstanding matters. If amendments are necessary, due to the change of the relevant
regulations or requested by the regulator’s order or changes in the objective environment,

the Board of Directors is authorized to do all required acts.

6. It is proposed to request the approval of the shareholders' meeting » and authorize the
Chairman or his designated agent to sign all relevant contracts and documents relating to

“The Private Placement Domestic Convertible Bond” and to handle all relevant matters,

and all matters related to the issuance of private placement domestic convertible bond.

7. Proposal on Private Placement of Securities by the Company,Pursuant to Article 43-6 of
the Securities and Exchange Act , description please visit the Market Observation Post
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System (Websites : http://mops.twse.com.tw/) and company website(Websites :

https://www.amulaire.com/ )
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[ Appendix 1]

AMULAIRE THERMAL TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Articles of Incorporation

CHAPTER | GENERAL PROVISIONS
Article 1: This Company is duly organized under the Company Act, bearing the name of
Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc. The company's English name is Amulaire
Thermal Technology, Inc.
Article 2: The business scopes of the Company are as follows:
A. C805050 Industrial Plastic Products Manufacturing
B. CA05010 Powder Metallurgy
C. CC01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing
D. F113990 Wholesale of Other Machinery and Tools
E. F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials
F. F213990 Retail Sale of Other Machinery and Equipment
G. F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials
H. F401010 International Trade
1.ZZ99999 All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted by law,
except those that are subject to special approval.

Article 3: The Headquarter of the Company is located in the New Taipei City. If necessary, with
the resolution of the Board of Directors, the Company may establish branch offices or
representative offices onshore or offshore in accordance with laws.

Article 4: Notices and Announcements from the Company, according toregulations of the

Company Law and the competent securities authority.
CHAPTER Il SHARES

Article 5: The total amount of capital of the Company is NTD 1,500,000,000, divided into
150,000,000 shares, all of which are common shares, with a par value of NTD 10 per
share, For unissued shares, the board of directors is authorized to issue shares in
installments.

The Company may issue employee stock options, preferred shares
withwarrants, or bonds with attached warrants for the exercise of stock
options, the board of directors is authorized to issue shares in installments.

The issuance price of the company's employee stock option certificates may

not be restricted by Article 53 of the issuer's guidelines for handling
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securities offerings and issuances.Issuance shall be made only after the
shareholders' meeting representing more than half of the total number of issued
shares attends the shareholders' meeting, and agreed by two-thirds or more of the
voting rights of the shareholders.

The share subscription warrant, including employees of controlling or subordinate
companies who meet certain conditions.

Qualification requirements of employees, including the employees of
parents or subsidiaries of the company meeting certain specific
requirements, entitled to receive share subscription warrant in accordance
with the provision of Paragraph One, may be specified in the Articles of
Incorporation.

In issuing new shares, qualification requirements of employees, including
the employees of parent s or subsidiaries of the company meeting certain
specific requirements.

Qualification requirements of employees, including the employees of
parents or subsidiaries of the company meeting certain specific
requirements, entitled to receive restricted stock for employees.

Avrticle 6: Total amount of the Company’s re-investment shall not be subject to the restrictions of
not more than forty percent of the Company’s paid-up capital as provided in Article
13 of the Company Act.

Article 7: The company may issue shares without printing stock certificates, but the
Company shall register in the organization governing centralized securities
depository enterprises, according to the regulations of the institution

Article 8: Unless otherwise stipulated by the Act on the Handling of Stock Affairs of the
Company,be handled in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the
Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies™ .

Article 8-1: Changes to the records in the shareholder register shall be handled in

accordance with Article 165 of the Company Law.
Chapter 3 Shareholders’ Meeting

Avrticle 9: Shareholders’ meetings of the Company are of two types, namely regular meetings
and special meetings:
I. Regular meetings shall be convened, by the Board of Directors, within six (6)
months after the close of each fiscal year.

I1. Special meetings shall be convened in accordance with relevant laws.
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Il. The Shareholders Meeting may convene through videoconferencing or any other

means as announced by competent authority.

Article 10: The shareholders’ meeting shall be presided over by the Chairman of the Board of

Directors of the Company. In his absence, either the Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors, the Chairperson shall designate one of the directors to act on
his/her behalf. If there is no such designation, the directors shall elect a
chairperson to act on his/her behalf from among themselves. For the
shareholders' meeting convened by any other person having the convening
right, he/she shall act as the chairperson of that meeting, provided,
however, that if there are two or more conveners, the chairperson of the

meeting shall be elected from among themselves.

Article 11: For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder that will be absent of the meeting for a

Article 12:

Article 13:

particular reason may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by providing the proxy
form issued by this Company and stating the scope of the proxy’s authorization.
Procedures for Shareholders to Attend by Proxy and Use of Power of
Attorney,unless the Company Act provides otherwise,handle this in accordance
with the “Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder
Meetings of Public Companies”.

If the Shareholders Meeting of the Company is convened, The company shall
provide shareholders with correspondence or electronic means of exercising voting
rights ,shareholders may cast their votes by correspondence or through electronic
mean, Shareholders whose voting rights are exercised electronically are
deemed to be present in person, relevant matters are handled in accordance
with laws and regulations.

Unless otherwise prescribed by laws or regulations, the proposal will only be
approved by the shareholders meeting when the attending shareholders represent a
majority of the total number of issued shares and majority of the shareholders
attending the meeting vote for the proposal.

Matters resolved at the shareholders' meeting shall be recorded in minutes and

handled in accordance with Article 183 of the Company Law.

Article 13-1: The company's stock application for issue and cancellation shall be

handled in accordance with the relevant provisions of Article 156 of the

Company Law.

Chapter 4 Directors, Audit Committee Members and Managers
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Article 14: The Company shall establish 5-9 seats of Directors with tenure of 3 years each. The
candidates for the seats shall be people of legal competence elected by the
Shareholders Meeting, and may assume a successive term of office if reelected.
When the shareholders' meeting elects directors, the holder of each share is
entitled to the number of votes equivalent to the number of Directors to be elected.
Shareholders may concentrate the votes on a particular candidate or distribute the
votes to different candidates. Candidates who earned the majority of the votes will be
elected to the seats of Directors.

Amongst the directors of the Company, at least three independent directors shall be
elected(At least one of the independent directors should have accounting or
financial expertise), and the number of seats for the Independent Directors shall
not fall below 1/5 of the total seats of Directors. The professional requirement,
shareholding, restriction of holding concurrent positions, nomination and election of
Independent Directors, and other matters for compliance shall be governed be
regulated by the requirement of the competent authority.

Pursuant to Article 192-1 of the Company Act. Candidates on the list of nomination
will be elected

The Company may purchase liability insurance policies for directors during the term
of their offices and within the scope of damages results from m theperformances of
their official duties, the amount of insurance and insurance matters shall be
authorized to be decided by the board of directors.

Article 14-1: The company may set up functional committees under the board of
directors, and the setting up and powers of relevant committees shall be
carried out in accordance with the regulations stipulated by the competent
authority.

Article 14-2: The Company shall establish an Audit Committeein , accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Securities and Exchange Law, and the Audit
Committee shall consist of all independent directors. Regarding matters
such as the number, term, powers and rules of procedure of the Audit
Committee, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Audit
Committee’s methods for exercising authority, the Audit Committee’s
organizational rules shall be separately formulated.

Avrticle 14-3: Deleted

Article 15: The board of directors is a body of elected members with power of authority

specified as following:
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Article 16:

Article 17;

I. Making business reports and financial reports.

I1. Proposal for Profit distribution or loss recovery.

[11. Proposal the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, change capital,
company dissolution or merger

IV.Formulate the company's internal control system and company
organization regulations

V.To approve the appointment, dismissal and remuneration of the
company's managers.

V1. Establish or dissolve a branch.

VII. The annual budget and review annual financial reports.

VIII. Appointment, dismissal and remuneration of accountants o

IX. Appointment and removal of the chiefs of finance, accounting and

internal audit.

X.Approved to reinvest in other businesses.

XI. Acquisition and disposal of approved company assets shall be handled
in accordance with Article 185 of the Company Law for the sale of all
or a major part of the property of the company.

XII. Lending funds to others or endorsement for others in accordance with

internal control regulations

XIIl. Apply for financing, guarantee, acceptance, bill endorsement and any

other credit and debt from financial institutions or third parties.

XIV. Other power of authority granted pursuant to the Company Act or resolution

by the shareholders meeting.
The board of directors shall elect a chairman of the board of directors from among
the directors by a majority vote at a meeting attended by over two-thirds of the
directors. The Chairman represents the Company externally.
Unless otherwise provided for in the Company Act, resolutions of the Board of
Directors shall be adopted by a majority of the directors at a meeting attended by a
majority of the directors. The resolutions of the Board shall be tracked as minute of
meeting on record. The Board of Directors' meeting shall be convened at least one
time a quarter. Unless otherwise stipulated by the Company Law, the board of
directors shall be convened by the chairman of the board of directors, and
the convener should state the convening matter for notification to the
directors seven days beforehand; . In the event of an emergency, however, it must

be called at any time. The convening method can be written, fax or email.
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Article 18:

Article 19:
Article 20:

Article 21:

Article 22:

Article 23:

Article 24:

The chairman of the board of directors shall preside at the meeting of the
board of directors. In case the chairman of the board of directors is on leave
or absent or cannot exercise his power and authority for any cause, the
person acting on his behalf shall handle things pursuant to the requirements
of Article 208 of the Company Act. Each director shall attend the meeting of
the board of directors in person. If the director cannot be present due to a
particular reason he may appoint other director to represent him. A director
may accept the appointment to act as the proxy referred to in the preceding
paragraph of one other director only.

The meeting of the board of directors may proceed via visual
communication network. The directors taking part in such a visual
communication meeting shall be deemed to have attended the meeting in
person.

Deleted

When the directors of the company perform their duties in the company, the
company may pay remuneration,according to directors based on the level of
participation and the value of devotion to the operation of the Company,
with reference to the standard of other entities in the same industry,
authorized by the Board of Directors

A Company may have managerial personnel. Appointment and discharge and the
remunerations of the managerial personnel shall be decided in accordance with
Article 29 of the Company Act.

Chapter 5 Accounting

The fiscal year for the Company shall be from January 1 of each year to December
31 of the same year. The Company shall, at the end of each fiscal year, proceed with
the annual accounting of revenues and expenditures.

At the end of each fiscal year, the board of directors shall prepare the following
schedules and submit them to the Regular Meeting of Shareholders for approval in
accordance with the law.

I. Business report

Il. Financial statements

[11. Proposals concerning appropriation of net profits or covering of losses.
The company's annual pre-tax net profit before deducting employee

remuneration and directors' remuneration should be allocated 5% to 15% as
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Article 25:

Article 26:

Article 27:

employee remuneration, which will be submitted to the board of directors
after deliberation by the remuneration committee. And shall be adopted by
a resolution of the majority of the Board of Directors in a meeting attended
by over two-thirds of the directors. It will be distributed in stock or cash,
and its distribution objects include employees of subordinate companies
who meet certain conditions; the company can the amount of profit by less
than 3%, which will be submitted to the board of directors after
deliberation by the remuneration committee, and shall be adopted by a
resolution of the majority of the Board of Directors in a meeting attended
by over two-thirds of the directors. Proposals on the distribution of
employee remuneration and director remuneration shall be reported to the
shareholders' meeting.

However, if the company still has accumulated losses, it shall reserve the
compensation amount in advance, and then allocate employee remuneration
and director remuneration in proportion to the preceding paragraph.

If the Company has earnings in account settlement of the year, appropriate for the
payment of applicable taxes, followed by the appropriation for covering
carryforward loss and 10% as mandatory reserve, and also appropriate or reverse
special reserve under law. If there is still a balance, pool up with the undistributed
earnings accumulated from the previous period for distribution, the Board shall
prepare the proposal for the distribution of earnings and present to the Shareholders
Meeting for approval.

The company's dividend policy should consider shareholders' interests, coordinate
with current and future development plans, and take into account factors such as
domestic industry competition, investment environment, and capital needs. It can be
implemented in the form of stock dividends or cash dividends, and Refer to the
general distribution level of dividends in the industry and the capital market as the
basis for dividend distribution. However, the proportion of cash dividend
distribution shall not be less than 10% of the total dividends. However, the type and
ratio of this surplus distribution may depend on the actual profit and capital status of
the year. The board of directors shall prepare a proposal and submit it to the
shareholders' meeting for resolution.

Deleted

Chapter 6 Supplementary Provisions

The company may engage in external guarantees for business needs, and its
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operations shall be handled in accordance with the company's operating
procedures for fund lending and endorsement guarantees.
Article 28: The Company’s organizational procedures and work rules will be prescribed
separately
Article 28-1:The company has set up a research and development center to continuously
support research and development activities to establish the core value of
"innovative technology and high-quality product services". The
organization, powers and responsibilities of the research and development
center are separately determined by the board of directors.
Avrticle 29: With regards to all matters not provided for in these Articles of Incorporation, the
Company Act shall govern.
Acrticle 30: These Articles of Incorporation were established on June 17, 2011.
The 1st amendment was on May 31, 2012
The 2nd amendment was on October 16, 2014
The 3rd amendment was on May 28, 2015
The 4th amendment was on September 30, 2015
The 5th amendment was on June 30, 2016.
The 6th amendment was on June 14, 2018.
The 7th amendment was on June 13, 2019.
The 8th amendment was on July 15, 2021
The 9th amendment was on May 28, 2022
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[ Appendix 2]

Article 1:

Article 2:

Article 3:

AMULAIRE THERMAL TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Rules of Procedure for Shareholders Meetings
To establish a strong governance system and sound supervisory capabilities for this
Corporation's shareholders meetings, and to strengthen management capabilities, these
Rules are adopted pursuant to Article 5 of the “BM0-006 Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles”.
The rules of procedures for this Corporation's shareholders meetings, except as
otherwise provided by law, regulation, or the articles of incorporation, shall be as
provided in these Rules.
Convening shareholders meetings and shareholders meeting notices
Changes to how this Corporation convenes its shareholders meeting shall be resolved
by the board of directors, and shall be made no later than mailing of the shareholders
meeting notice.
This Corporation shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders meeting notice
and proxy forms, and the origins of and explanatory materials relating to all proposals,
including proposals for ratification, matters for deliberation, or the election or
dismissal of directors or supervisors, and upload them to the Market Observation Post
System (MOPS) before 30 days before the date of a regular shareholders meeting or
before 15 days before the date of a special shareholders meeting. This Corporation
shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders meeting agenda and supplemental
meeting materials and upload them to the MOPS before 21 days before the date of the
regular shareholders meeting or before 15 days before the date of the special
shareholders meeting. In addition, before 15 days before the date of the shareholders
meeting, this Corporation shall also have prepared the shareholders meeting agenda
and supplemental meeting materials and made them available for review by
shareholders at any time. The meeting agenda and supplemental materials shall also
be displayed at this Corporation and the professional shareholder services agent
designated thereby as well as being distributed on-site at the meeting place.
The reasons for convening a shareholders meeting shall be specified in the meeting
notice and public announcement. With the consent of the addressee, the meeting
notice may be given in electronic form.

Election or dismissal of directors or supervisors, amendments to the articles of
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incorporation, reduction of capital, application for the approval of ceasing its status as
a public company, approval of competing with the company by directors, surplus
profit distributed in the form of new shares, reserve distributed in the form of new
shares, the dissolution, merger, or demerger of the corporation, or any matter under
Article 185, paragraph 1 of the Company Act, Articles 26-1 and 43-6 of the Securities
Exchange Act, Articles 56-1 and 60-2 of the Regulations Governing the Offering and
Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers shall be set out and the essential contents
explained in the notice of the reasons for convening the shareholders meeting. None of
the above matters may be raised by an extraordinary motion.

Where re-election of all directors and supervisors as well as their inauguration date is
stated in the notice of the reasons for convening the shareholders meeting, after the
completion of the re-election in said meeting such inauguration date may not be
altered by any extraordinary motion or otherwise in the same meeting.

A shareholder holding one percent or more of the total number of issued shares may
submit to this Corporation a proposal for discussion at a regular shareholders meeting.
The number of items so proposed is limited to one only, and no proposal containing
more than one item will be included in the meeting agenda. When the circumstances
of any subparagraph of Article 172-1, paragraph 4 of the Company Act apply to a
proposal put forward by a shareholder, the board of directors may exclude it from the
agenda. A shareholder may propose a recommendation for urging the corporation to
promote public interests or fulfill its social responsibilities, provided procedurally the
number of items so proposed is limited only to one in accordance with Article 172-1
of the Company Act, and no proposal containing more than one item will be included
in the meeting agenda.

Prior to the book closure date before a regular shareholders meeting is held, this
Corporation shall publicly announce its acceptance of shareholder proposals in writing
or electronically, and the location and time period for their submission; the period for
submission of shareholder proposals may not be less than 10 days.
Shareholder-submitted proposals are limited to 300 words, and no proposal containing
more than 300 words will be included in the meeting agenda. The shareholder making
the proposal shall be present in person or by proxy at the regular shareholders meeting
and take part in discussion of the proposal.

Prior to the date for issuance of notice of a shareholders meeting, this Corporation
shall inform the shareholders who submitted proposals of the proposal screening

results, and shall list in the meeting notice the proposals that conform to the provisions
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Article 4:

Article 5;

of this article. At the shareholders meeting the board of directors shall explain the
reasons for exclusion of any shareholder proposals not included in the agenda.

For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the
meeting by providing the proxy form issued by this Corporation and stating the scope
of the proxy's authorization. A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint
only one proxy for any given shareholders meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form
to this Corporation before five days before the date of the shareholders meeting. When
duplicate proxy forms are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail unless a
declaration is made to cancel the previous proxy appointment.

After a proxy form has been delivered to this Corporation, if the shareholder intends
to attend the meeting in person or to exercise voting rights by correspondence or
electronically, a written notice of proxy cancellation shall be submitted to this
Corporation before two business days before the meeting date. If the cancellation
notice is submitted after that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy shall prevail.
If, after a proxy form is delivered to this Corporation, a shareholder wishes to attend
the shareholders meeting online, a written notice of proxy cancellation shall be
submitted to this Corporation two business days before the meeting date. If the
cancellation notice is submitted after that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy
shall prevail.

The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the premises of this Corporation, or a
place easily accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders meeting. The
meeting may begin no earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration
shall be given to the opinions of the independent directors with respect to the place
and time of the meeting.

The restrictions on the place of the meeting shall not apply when this Corporation
convenes a virtual-only shareholders meeting.

This Corporation shall specify in its shareholders meeting notices the time during
which attendance registrations for shareholders, solicitors and proxies (collectively
"shareholders™) will be accepted, the place to register for attendance, and other
matters for attention. If a shareholders meeting is held by means of visual
communication, should be recorded shareholders attend the virtual meeting and
exercise their rights, actions to be taken if the virtual meeting platform or participation
in the virtual meeting is obstructed due to  other force majeure events,and the date to
which the meeting is postponed or on which the meeting will resume andOther

matters needing attention; To convene a virtual-only shareholders meeting,
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appropriate alternative measures available to shareholders with difficulties in
attending a virtual shareholders meeting online shall be specified.The time during
which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, as stated in the preceding
paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes prior to the time the meeting commences. The
place at which attendance registrations are accepted shall be clearly marked and a

sufficient number of suitable personnel assigned to handle the registrations.

Article 6:Shareholders shall attend shareholders meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in

Article 7:

cards, or other certificates of attendance. This Corporation may not arbitrarily add
requirements for other documents beyond those showing eligibility to attend presented
by shareholders. Solicitors soliciting proxy forms shall also bring identification
documents for verification.

This Corporation shall furnish the attending shareholders with an attendance book to
sign, or attending shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in.

This Corporation shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting agenda book,
annual report, attendance card, speaker's slips, voting slips, and other meeting
materials. Where there is an election of directors or supervisors, pre-printed ballots
shall also be furnished.

When the government or a juristic person is a shareholder, it may be represented by
more than one representative at a shareholders meeting. When a juristic person is
appointed to attend as proxy, it may designate only one person to represent it in the
meeting.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, shareholders wishing to attend the
meeting online shall register with this Corporation two days before the meeting date.
In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall upload the
meeting agenda book, annual report and other meeting materials to the virtual meeting
platform at least 30 minutes before the meeting starts, and keep this information
disclosed until the end of the meeting.

If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting shall be
chaired by the chairperson of the board. When the chairperson of the board is on leave
or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the chairperson, the vice
chairperson shall act in place of the chairperson; if there is no vice chairperson or the
vice chairperson also is on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the
vice chairperson, the chairperson shall appoint one of the managing directors to act as
chair, or, if there are no managing directors, one of the directors shall be appointed to

act as chair. Where the chairperson does not make such a designation, the managing
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directors or the directors shall select from among themselves one person to serve as
chair.

When a managing director or a director serves as chair, as referred to in the preceding
paragraph, the managing director or director shall be one who has held that position
for six months or more and who understands the financial and business conditions of
the company. The same shall be true for a representative of a juristic person director
that serves as chair.

If a shareholders meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but other than
the board of directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. When there are
two or more such convening parties, they shall mutually select a chair from among
themselves.

This Corporation may appoint its attorneys, certified public accountants, or related
persons retained by it to attend a shareholders meeting in a non-voting capacity.

Article 8:This Corporation, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder attendance

registrations, shall make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the
registration procedure, the proceedings of the shareholders meeting, and the voting
and vote counting procedures. The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph
shall be retained for at least one year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit
pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording shall be retained until the
conclusion of the litigation.

Where a shareholders meeting is held online, this Corporation shall keep records of
shareholder registration, sign-in, check-in, questions raised, votes cast and results of
votes counted by this Corporation, and continuously audio and video record, without
interruption, the proceedings of the virtual meeting from beginning to end.

he information and audio and video recording in the preceding paragraph shall be
properly kept by this Corporation during the entirety of its existence, and copies of
the audio and video recording shall be provided to and kept by the party appointed to
handle matters of the virtual meeting.

Avrticle 9: Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares.
The number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the shares
indicated by the attendance book and sign-in cards handed in, and the shares checked
in on the virtual meeting platform, plus the number of shares whose voting rights are
exercised by correspondence or electronically.

The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time and disclose

information concerning the number of nonvoting shares and number of shares
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represented by shareholders attending the meeting.

However, when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total
number of issued shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no
more than two such postponements, for a combined total of no more than one hour,
may be made. If the quorum is not met after two postponements and the attending
shareholders still represent less than one third of the total number of issued shares, the
chair shall declare the meeting adjourned. In the event of a virtual shareholders
meeting, this Corporation shall also declare the meeting adjourned at the virtual
meeting platform.

If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding
paragraph, but the attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total
number of issued shares, a tentative resolution may be adopted pursuant to Article 175,
paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all shareholders shall be notified of the tentative
resolution and another shareholders meeting shall be convened within one month. In
the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, shareholders intending to attend the
meeting online shall re-register to this Corporation in accordance with Article 6.
When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a
majority of the total number of issued shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative
resolution for a vote by the shareholders meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the
Company Act.

Article 10: If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting agenda
shall be set by the board of directors. Votes shall be cast on each separate proposal in
the agend. The meeting shall proceed in the order set by the agenda, which may not
be changed without a resolution of the shareholders meeting.

The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders
meeting convened by a party with the power to convene that is not the board of
directors.

The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of deliberation
on the meeting agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including extraordinary
motions), except by a resolution of the shareholders meeting. If the chair declares the
meeting adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure, the other members of the
board of directors shall promptly assist the attending shareholders in electing a new
chair in accordance with statutory procedures, by agreement of a majority of the
votes represented by the attending shareholders, and then continue the meeting.

The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation and
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Article 11:

Article 12:

discussion of proposals and of amendments or extraordinary motions put forward by
the shareholders; when the chair is of the opinion that a proposal has been discussed
sufficiently to put it to a vote, the chair may announce the discussion closed, call for
a vote, and schedule sufficient time for voting.

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker's slip the
subject of the speech, his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card
number), and account name. The order in which shareholders speak will be set by the
chair.

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not actually
speak shall be deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech does not
correspond to the subject given on the speaker's slip, the spoken content shall
prevail.

Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on
the same proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes. If the
shareholder's speech violates the rules or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the
chair may terminate the speech.

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or
interrupt unless they have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the
shareholder that has the floor; the chair shall stop any violation.

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a
shareholders meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the
same proposal.

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or direct
relevant personnel to respond.

Where a virtual shareholders meeting is convened, shareholders attending the virtual
meeting online may raise questions in writing at the virtual meeting platform from
the chair declaring the meeting open until the chair declaring the meeting adjourned.
No more than two questions for the same proposal may be raised. Each question
shall contain no more than 200 words. The regulations in paragraphs 1 to 5 do not
apply.

\oting at a shareholders meeting shall be calculated based the number of shares.
With respect to resolutions of shareholders meetings, the number of shares held by a
shareholder with no voting rights shall not be calculated as part of the total number
of issued shares.

When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there is
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Article 13:

the likelihood that such a relationship would prejudice the interests of this
Corporation, that shareholder may not vote on that item, and may not exercise voting
rights as proxy for any other shareholder.

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the
preceding paragraph shall not be calculated as part of the voting rights represented

by attending shareholders.

With the exception of a trust enterprise or a shareholder services agent approved by
the competent securities authority, when one person is concurrently appointed as
proxy by two or more shareholders, the voting rights represented by that proxy may
not exceed three percent of the voting rights represented by the total number of
issued shares. If that percentage is exceeded, the voting rights in excess of that
percentage shall not be included in the calculation.

A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the
shares are restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares under Article 179,
paragraph 2 of the Company Act.

When this Corporation holds a shareholder meeting, it shall adopt exercise of voting
rights by electronic means and may adopt exercise of voting rights by
correspondence. When voting rights are exercised by correspondence or electronic
means, the method of exercise shall be specified in the shareholders meeting notice.
A shareholder exercising voting rights by correspondence or electronic means will be
deemed to have attended the meeting in person, but to have waived his/her rights
with respect to the extraordinary motions and amendments to original proposals of
that meeting; it is therefore advisable that this Corporation avoid the submission of
extraordinary motions and amendments to original proposals.

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic
means under the preceding paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent to
this Corporation before two days before the date of the shareholders meeting. When
duplicate declarations of intent are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail,
except when a declaration is made to cancel the earlier declaration of intent.

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic
means, in the event the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders meeting in
person or online, a written declaration of intent to retract the voting rights already
exercised under the preceding paragraph shall be made known to this Corporation, by
the same means by which the voting rights were exercised, before two business days

before the date of the shareholders meeting. If the notice of retraction is submitted
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after that time, the voting rights already exercised by correspondence or electronic
means shall prevail. When a shareholder has exercised voting rights both by
correspondence or electronic means and by appointing a proxy to attend a
shareholders meeting, the voting rights exercised by the proxy in the meeting shall
prevail.

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in this Corporation's articles
of incorporation, the passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a
majority of the voting rights represented by the attending shareholders. At the time of
a vote, for each proposal, the chair or a person designated by the chair shall first
announce the total number of voting rights represented by the attending shareholders.
When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present
the amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide
the order in which they will be put to a vote. When any one among them is passed,
the other proposals will then be deemed rejected, and no further voting shall be
required.

\Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be
appointed by the chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders
of this Corporation.

elections shall be conducted in public at the place of the shareholders meeting.
Immediately after vote counting has been completed, the results of the voting,
including the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at
the meeting, and a record made of the vote.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, votes shall be counted at once after the
chair announces the voting session ends, and results of votes and elections shall be
announced immediately.

When this Corporation convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting, if shareholders who
have registered to attend the meeting online in accordance with Article 6 decide to
attend the physical shareholders meeting in person, they shall revoke their
registration two days before the shareholders meeting in the same manner as they
registered. If their registration is not revoked within the time limit, they may only
attend the shareholders meeting online.

When shareholders exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means,
unless they have withdrawn the declaration of intent and attended the shareholders
meeting online, except for extraordinary motions, they will not exercise voting rights

on the original proposals or make any amendments to the original proposals or
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Article 14:

Article 15:

Article 16:

exercise voting rights on amendments to the original proposal.

The election of directors at a shareholders meeting shall be held in accordance with
the applicable election and appointment rules adopted by this Corporation, and the
voting results shall be announced on-site immediately, including the names of those
elected as directors and the numbers of votes with which they were elected.

The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed
with the signatures of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at
least one year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the

Company Act, the ballots shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.

Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the
meeting minutes. The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of the
meeting and a copy distributed to each shareholder within 20 days after the
conclusion of the meeting. The meeting minutes may be produced and distributed in
electronic form.

This Corporation may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding paragraph by
means of a public announcement made through the MOPS.

The meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place of the
meeting, the chair's full name, the methods by which resolutions were adopted, and a
summary of the deliberations and their voting results (including the number of voting
rights), and disclose the number of voting rights won by each candidate in the event
of an election of directors or supervisors. The minutes shall be retained for the
duration of the existence of this Corporation.

Where a virtual shareholders meeting is convened, in addition to the particulars to be
included in the meeting minutes as described in the preceding paragraph, the start
time and end time of the shareholders meeting, how the meeting is convened, the
chair's and secretary's name, and actions to be taken in the event of disruption to the
virtual meeting platform or participation in the meeting online due to natural
disasters, accidents or other force majeure events, and how issues are dealt with shall

also be included in the minutes.

On the day of a shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall compile in the
prescribed format a statistical statement of the number of shares obtained by
solicitors through solicitation, the number of shares represented by proxies and the

number of shares represented by shareholders attending the meeting by
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Article 17:

Article 18:

correspondence or electronic means, and shall make an express disclosure of the
same at the place of the shareholders meeting. In the event a virtual shareholders
meeting, this Corporation shall upload the above meeting materials to the virtual
meeting platform at least 30 minutes before the meeting starts, and keep this
information disclosed until the end of the meeting.

During this Corporation's virtual shareholders meeting, when the meeting is called to
order, the total number of shares represented at the meeting shall be disclosed on the
virtual meeting platform. The same shall apply whenever the total number of shares
represented at the meeting and a new tally of votes is released during the meeting.

If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders meeting constitute material
information under applicable laws or regulations or under Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation (or Taipei Exchange Market) regulations, this Corporation shall upload
the content of such resolution to the MOPS within the prescribed time period.

Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders meeting shall wear
identification cards or arm bands.

The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at the
meeting place. When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the
meeting place, they shall wear an identification card or armband bearing the word
"Proctor."

At the place of a shareholders meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through
any device other than the public address equipment set up by this Corporation, the
chair may prevent the shareholder from so doing.

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's correction,
obstructing the proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair may direct
the proctors or security personnel to escort the shareholder from the meeting.

When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time
considerations. If a force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting
temporarily suspended and announce a time when, in view of the circumstances, the
meeting will be resumed.

If the meeting venue is no longer available for continued use and not all of the items
(including extraordinary motions) on the meeting agenda have been addressed, the
shareholders meeting may adopt a resolution to resume the meeting at another venue.
A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders meeting to defer or resume the

meeting within five days in accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act.

Article 19: In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall disclose
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Article 20:

Article 21:

real-time results of votes and election immediately after the end of the voting session
on the virtual meeting platform according to the regulations, and this disclosure shall
continue at least 15 minutes after the chair has announced the meeting adjourned.
When this Corporation convenes a virtual-only shareholders meeting, both the chair
and secretary shall be in the same location

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, when declaring the meeting open, the
chair shall also declare, unless under a circumstance where a meeting is not required
to be postponed to or resumed at another time under Article 44-20, paragraph 4 of
the Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public
Companies, if the virtual meeting platform or participation in the virtual meeting is
obstructed due to natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events before the
chair has announced the meeting adjourned, and the obstruction continues for more
than 30 minutes, the meeting shall be postponed to or resumed on another date
within five days, in which case Article 182 of the Company Act shall not apply.
During a postponed or resumed session of a shareholders meeting held under the
previous paragraph, no further discussion or resolution is required for proposals for
which votes have been cast and counted and results have been announced, or list of
elected directors and supervisors.

When postponing or resuming a meeting according to the first paragraph, this
Corporation shall handle the preparatory work based on the date of the original
shareholders meeting in accordance with the requirements listed under Article 44-20,
paragraph 7 of the Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder
Services of Public Companies, shareholders listed in the register of shareholders
whose transfer of ownership is suspended at the original shareholders' meeting have
the right to attend the shareholders' meeting.

For dates or period set forth under Article 12, second half, and Article 13, paragraph
3 of Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder
Meetings of Public Companies, and Article 44-5, paragraph 2, Article 44-15, and
Article 44-17, paragraph 1 of the Regulations Governing the Administration of
Shareholder Services of Public Companies, this Corporations hall handle the matter
based on the date of the shareholders meeting that is postponed or resumed under the
second paragraph. When this Corporation convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting,
and the virtual meeting cannot continue as described in first paragraph, if the total
number of shares represented at the meeting, after deducting those represented by

shareholders attending the virtual shareholders meeting online, still meets the
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Article 22:

Article 23:

minimum legal requirement for a shareholder meeting, then the shareholders meeting
shall continue, and not postponement or resumption thereof under the first paragraph
IS required.

When convening a virtual-only shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall provide
appropriate alternative measures available to shareholders with difficulties in
attending a virtual shareholders meeting online.

These Rules shall take effect after having been submitted to and approved by a
shareholders meeting. Subsequent amendments thereto shall be effected in the same
manner.

These Rules were established on May 28 , 2015.

The 1st amendment was made on June 30, 2016

The 2nd amendment was made on June 4, 2020

The 3rd amendment was made on July 15, 2021

The 4th amendment was made on May 26, 2022
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[ Appendix 3)

AMULAIRE THERMAL TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Procedures for Election of Directors

1. To ensure a just, fair, and open election of directors and supervisors, these Procedures are
adopted pursuant to Articles 21 of the “BMO0-006 Corporate Governance Best-Practice
Principles”.

2. Except as otherwise provided by law and regulation or by this Corporation's Articles of
ncorporation, elections of directors and supervisors shall be conducted in accordance with
hese Procedures.

3. The qualifications for the independent directors of this Corporation shall comply with Articles

2, 3, and 4 of the Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and
Compliance Matters for Public Companies.
The election of independent directors of this Corporation shall comply with Articles 5, 6, 7, 8,
and 9 of the Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance
Matters for Public Companies, and shall be conducted in accordance with Article 24 of the
“BMO0-006 Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles”.

4. The overall composition of the board of directors shall be taken into consideration in the
selection of this Corporation's directors. The composition of the board of directors shall be
determined by taking diversity into consideration and formulating an appropriate policy on
diversity based on the company's business operations, operating dynamics, and development
needs. It is advisable that the policy include, without being limited to, the following two
general standards:

(1). Basic requirements and values: Gender, age, nationality, and culture.

(2). Professional knowledge and skills: A professional background (e.g., law, accounting,
industry, finance, marketing, technology ) , professional skills, andindustry experience.
Each board member shall have the necessary knowledge, skill, and experience to
perform their duties; the abilities that must be present in the board as a whole are as
follows :

(1).The ability to make judgments about operations.

(2).Accounting and financial analysis ability.

(3).Business management ability.

(4).Crisis management ability.

(5).Knowledge of the industry.

(6).An international market perspective.

(7).Leadership ability.

(8).Decision-making ability.

More than half of the directors shall be persons who have neither a spousal
relationship nor a relationship within the second degree of kinship with any other
director.

The board of directors of this Corporation shall consider adjusting its composition
based on the results of performance evaluation.

5. Elections of directors at this Corporation shall be conducted in accordance with the candidate

nomination system and procedures set out in Article 192-1 of the Company Act.
When the number of directors falls below five due to the dismissal of a director for any
reason, this Corporation shall hold a by-election to fill the vacancy at its next shareholders
meeting. When the number of directors falls short by one third of the total number prescribed
in this Corporation's articles of incorporation, this Corporation shall call a special
shareholders meeting within 60 days from the date of occurrence to hold a by-election to fill
the vacancies.
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12.

When the number of independent directors falls below that required under the proviso of
Article 14-2, paragraph 1 of the Securities and Exchange Act, a by-election shall be held at
the next shareholders meeting to fill the vacancy. When the independent directors are
dismissed en masse, a special shareholders meeting shall be called within 60 days from the
date of occurrence to hold a by-election to fill the vacancies.

. The cumulative voting method shall be used for election of the directors and supervisors at

this Corporation. Each share will have voting rights in number equal to the directors or
supervisors to be elected, and may be cast for a single candidate or split among multiple
candidates.

. The board of directors shall prepare separate ballots for directors in numbers corresponding to

the directors to be elected. The number of voting rights associated with each ballot shall be
specified on the ballots, which shall then be distributed to the attending shareholders at the
shareholders meeting. Attendance card numbers printed on the ballots may be used instead of
recording the names of voting shareholders.

. The number of directors will be as specified in this Corporation's articles of incorporation,

with voting rights separately calculated for independent and non-independent director
positions. Those receiving ballots representing the highest numbers of voting rights will be
elected sequentially according to their respective numbers of votes. When two or more
persons receive the same number of votes, thus exceeding the specified number of positions,
they shall draw lots to determine the winner, with the chair drawing lots on behalf of any
person not in attendance.

. Before the election begins, the chair shall appoint a number of persons with shareholder

status to perform the respective duties of vote monitoring and counting personnel. The ballot
boxes shall be prepared by the board of directors and publicly checked by the vote monitoring
personnel before voting commences.
. Aballot is invalid under any of the following circumstances:

(1)Is not dropped into the ballot box

(2)1s not on a ballot prepared by authorized conveners

(3)Is not filled out by voter or is blank

(4)The writing is unclear and indecipherable or has been altered.

(5)Contains the name of a candidate List of Director Candidates do not comply

with the register of shares
(6)Other words or marks are entered in addition to the number of voting rights
allotted.

. The voting rights shall be calculated on site immediately after the end of the poll, and the
results of the calculation, including the list of persons elected as directors or supervisors and
the numbers of votes with which they were elected, shall be announced by the chair on the
site.
The previous ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed
with the signatures of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at least one
year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act,
the ballots shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.
These procedures and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after approval by a
shareholders’ meeting.
This Procedure was enacted on June 30, 2016
The 1st amendment was made on July 15, 2021
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[ Appendix 4]

Amulaire Thermal Technology, Inc.

Shareholdings of Directors

Book closure date : March 27, 2023

Title Name Shareholding
Chairman Chi-Sheng, Lin 2,358,911
. Pao Yu (1) Investments Co., Ltd.

Director Representative: Chih Jen, Hu 6,830,817
Director Sunder Investment. Co., Ltd.

Representative: Chao-Li, Huang 527,539
Director Ta-Lun, Huang 2,232,823
Independent | iqin-vi, Chan -
director
Independent Shih Han, Huang —
director
Independent , B
director Ying-Jet, Wang (Note 4)
Total 11,950,090

Note :

(1) Total shares issued as of March 27, 2023: 89,602,306 common shares.

(2) Share ownership of directors required by law:7,168,184 common shares.The

actual number of shares held: 11,950,090 common shares. The share ownership of

directors has met the minimum legal requirement according to Article 26 of

Securities Exchange Act of the Republic of China.

(3) The company has an audit committee, so there is no statutory requirement for the

number of shares held by the supervisor.

(4) Resigned from independent director due to personal reasons at December 15,

2022.
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